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1.755.815.872
(448.326.355)
1.307.489.517
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8.976.867.121
(27.587.134.080)
(10.751.802.687)
(7.786.787.375)

RHB &

2022
iy

58.046.703.843
(23.555.088.198)
34.491.615.645

6.121.830.030

40.613.445.675

1.323.822.276
(335.567.370)

988.254.906

24.535.640

(187.730.954)
(187.730.954)
(17.835.614.325)
(8.027.413.634)
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22.344.910.704  10.152.677.445
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22.344.910.704

8.416.076.208
5.074.047.491
1.546.726.735
1.166.013.149

148.959.364
(8.451.385.046)

(73.858.909.366)
33.883.851.395

(9.729.719.366)

(52.855.184.405)
111.412.000.000
(135.229.829.150)

(154.032.643)

26.800.945.230
47.232.830.902
(726.400.170)

71.919.622.325
(32.824.852.401)

25.845.380.322

(2.415.513.042)

(737.232.702)
(3.152.745.744)
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10.152.677.445

4.880.051.078
3.366.617.312
723.991.056
1.332.191.495
(24.535.640)

7.166.187.170

(58.046.703.843)
23.555.088.198

(6.894.435.729)

(157.413.984.299)
(101.522.000.000)
26.277.226.548

764.570.949

11.442.006.883
157.334.102.734
1.575.312.485

61.048.395.384
(22.202.467.169)
29.591.272.214

(503.975.574)
35.902.308
(823.973.023)
(1.292.046.289)
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(3.170.384.964)

(3.170.384.964)
19.522.249.614

(2.705.951.605)
39.700.012.500
36.994.060.895

6.110.742.392

Gudn war wnwnjuiiiudn, Gud 6 128.474.064.931 106.105.876.167

BuangounnsnnianduGum 23.662.912.737 16.257.446.372
(Guda waz ArwnwnjuciaGuiaviaed 6 171.659.227.282 128.474.064.931
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MuEisu tmonjofivusniozelSuduiynt uDAofy $1FudUINSVN 31 Fivor 2023 Diju:

AUn;

TSui 1 Jyneu 2023

&H &
Wwueutud

tu3wuaui 31 viuoaa 2023

a13suyuargzdy
TS 1 Jgneu 2023

au2a.uud

tuduu 31 vivaa 2023

yuainwivg

Juui 31 vivoaa 2023

b 111

14.526.048.509
736.230.719
15.262.279.228

(8.371.996.406)
(1.546.726.735)
(9.918.723.141)

5.343.556.087

tUunuasuidiatd 11394010 10*

QA2U
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279.724.815 14.805.773.324
1.001.983 737.232.702
280.726.798 15.543.006.026
- (8.371.996.406)

- (1.546.726.735)

- (9.918.723.141)
280.726.798 5.624.282.885

* ZuguanuiGofiunidinaciuniy Twazmdnd 2023 counjofiulajnivasngiuazivayy

290291

& o~ @ o O bAQo o o a & o a Y] cu &
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T3S 1 Jgneu 2022
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tuduys 31 vivaa 2022
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TSuii 1 Jyneu 2022
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tu3wuaui 31 viuoaa 2022

yuainwwiug

Juu 31 Kiuaa 2022

Ny

9.053.247.727
169.800.000
5.303.000.782
14.526.048.509

(7.648.005.350)
(723.991.056)
(8.371.996.406)

6.154.052.103

tunuasudiatd 11390101 0*
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4.928.552.574

a4

13.981.800.301
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(5.303.000.782) -
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- (7.648.005.350)

- (723.991.056)

- (8.371.996.406)
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11. Sududue

01189009001 (i)
nencdunigSu (i)
&
aue) (iii)

TuarwPunuGuasneInIy

2023

iy
889.965.382
17.424.294.849

1.630.436.355
19.944.696.586

2022

fiu
869.559.086
15.485.007.808

1.496.810.000
17.851.376.894

(i) 211891003007 Urnaulniugiaziuaninndauaiedl, U19ISNIgauD, (e Jziiutw,

.. v ¥ a a o ¥ a o v Y ' it o v & &
(i) nendiuanSudzneul nenduninSuanGuidinduenanal cazGuuinfivnzuinwdug i

oudnianSunidutougFuGu tdnduiunio.

(i) aouiawdwdnguesgnsuiniuaocdy Juasn, Jufuuin way niuSuddy.

12. Gueanaananaa
Bueanamngnasdaiz W0 wi:

n d@riznudsiwaz2s)juedan

LJAINNZUIIUDU
dJandzdn
eJandnaldo

2 J@1IznIuYESwa29)ILNUGY
2y

027

uin

24

2023
iy
10.160.581.056

17.754.263.122
74.505.125.099

2022
vy
10.498.901.165

10.896.956.668
54.223.166.214

102.419.969.277 75.619.024.047
2023 2022
vy fiu

36.821.501.565
52.366.677.223
13.231.790.489
102.419.969.277

19.301.667.709
39.967.850.583
16.349.505.755
75.619.024.047




TuawPunuiuasmEInIy

a 3Jarznruiagzcalarnaia

wieu 3 (Bsu

4 m1 6 (oW

7 1 12 sy
0101907 12 (fioy

7 Srarzniudsiwazsjanan

Souyniu

Vynéiu

9 Jarzniudziwnz9)aarusrdiv

weldngw

INAaA

13. 212U uNSUIMNIIFacc)

Gueandnada (i)

& o Fay ' ° O as ..
0019989 md190S0 (ii)

NV 2SIV 10 NNNWNIO

2033

nu
38.682.514.288
27.497.762.194
14.934.461.220

21.305.231.575

RHB®

2032

nu
27.697.307.520
14.815.515.024
13.890.337.792

19.215.863.711

102.419.969.277 75.619.024.047
2023 2022

vy b 111
32.585.554.643 45.445.965.985
69.834.414.634 30.173.058.062
102.419.969.277 75.619.024.047
2023 2022

v fiu

4.033.695.137

5.855.343.046

98.386.274.140 69.763.681.001
102.419.969.277 75.619.024.047
2023 2022

vy iy

619.617.955.880
21.995.054.353
641.613.010.233

572.385.124.978
49.890.841.520
622.275.966.498

(i) Guelandno, Adugznudy lnwenzdn, B3d8amnsndiuan 2.00% 83 5.80% o
J (0 2022: 4.00% (1}3 4.50%) 0d ad tnadndo 1§y 3 8 (2022: 1 svin fjg 3 D).

(i) ficieId) Wiarmdmzuinw Jensulnwssudy war suznsuludiegfiulng neun o
S0 Uragy WiauznwEudntnzuini. NEuarnd130380g1010298UNIUNIUSIN
&99. WD 2023, MidieId Wiarndnzuiniw 21wou 1.931.874 1021, (dugznu@uiu 49
vou 39.700.012.500 fiu fintsuucduiivgejnzuaniy 10g tESUNIussyaInNIn eIy
(g YU 210 tang1uani 1035/nna 335w 21 diuoa 2023.
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14. vii§uSu9

nancdunigane
2906199013, (UIS war tUSusus (i)

TuarwPunuGuasneInIy

2023

11
11.540.938.421
8.040.164.782

19.581.103.203

2022

iy
10.481.939.427
8.651.844.900

19.133.784.327

o~ ¥ o Eo & '3y o ' It ' ! o ')
Y2091, (JUUS (RS TUKIUBUT) QDUL (LgNNSUINIY, QﬂU?ﬂUﬂﬂj'ﬂﬂUﬂﬂaugtwﬂ, leJtUlJO (¥}

uRun1L Wzoue).

15. sliduniusdusacda

2023 2022

fiy fiu

Zumuduecds nncdiiidy 13.221.408.372  13.043.824.889
(n) frdasrazduviduaandueacdaiidyi:

2023 2022

fiy fiu

wﬂEJCEUUTJja 1.925.932.500 2.085.990.562

EﬁlJUdl’inj 11.295.475.872 10.957.834.327

13.221.408.372 13.043.824.889

neaudndigsingSunaucEalud 2023 wou 3.682.699.194 Hu (2022: 3.183.637.594 fu)

16. HIUFANSUFUYINUAD
2023 2022
fiu fiv

TSui 1 Jyney
wuRuionzugy (Dnszfuwsi 13, 24 (2))

tudud 31 vivon
17. (31971599010 ATUFUNIY

UInuEisu tmoge)fudisejmuasuunIvwIn tud

Tududh 1 Jyneu / Suth 31 Hiuon

26

460.300.050.000
39.700.012.500

420.600.037.500
39.700.012.500

500.000.062.500 460.300.050.000
2023 2022

iy iy
2.130.187.655 2.130.187.655
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A19SVa9Niy
uSunentduangyna

AuSunentdulamnzunIl

A191909NCTY
AUUOSNILININAT
uOeNUINIASOCL

VO eNDYINNFUNIURULIZ

a1u$vaancds waz arwSuniarwasiv, gas

19. ?aaSuariIV U (AT aI1VI1BVUT A

19SVAINIVIL (AT AIVIBVVA
eSunuUIURNNINYsuEUTHNO U
aathu3Udu oy

auhIUIUS UL

USUNTIUI LS

298918 INAWIVIU (2L AI1VIBOVI
QU0

A1UYINNINIWIUTUNILTISUEY

AruSvariaujy (as a1uIgvNl, Javi

NV 2SIV 10 NNNWNIO

18. ?auSuasncis Az ArgSunargany, san

2023

25.970.186.258
47.888.723.108
73.858.909.366

RHB &

2022

23.958.537.685
34.088.166.158
58.046.703.843

(3.470.052.346)
(29.901.484.819)
(512.314.230)
(33.883.851.395)

(2.823.945.023)
(20.253.457.186)
(477.685.989)
(23.555.088.198)

39.975.057.971

34.491.615.645

2023 2022
fiv fiv
1.230.042.137 635.276.754
106.636.347 165.278.561
53.310.474 144.660.257
365.826.914 378.606.704
1.755.815.872  1.323.822.276
(58.318.376) (71.462.704)
(390.007.979) (264.104.666)
(448.326.355) (335.567.370)
1.307.489.517 988.254.906
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20. (Guciow Az a1182199u929JWiiNg1u

21.

RHB &

(0S397 €z Guitioy
Guluiin

' 2 ‘h Qs
0178918U%)295wringIu

21921991031V (AL 1919y

MUNUNIFDLEYT Ry T19ISN
QePUOWLTIU W

muﬁwéﬁu@aﬁoam
Aupun 8 mouniudsw
QA1UUFISMWOUODIKLOON
ePUnWTIU W

MeNUnI9UENe Ut

UPUOATUNI €Qe 0BV
IUUNUNILOZNIN (T NJOLIKINIRLUL
UNUOWUIL Ry GuonsyunzuzedSma

' ' P X &
UL & TUNUISInISUY)

maéwénﬁuz@éjagm
(2022: 677.260.000 7iv)

28

TuarwPunuGuasneInIy

2023

20.270.334.980

2022

15.900.721.328

5.569.876.071 652.107.095
1.746.923.029 1.282.785.902
27.587.134.080 17.835.614.325
2023 2022

b 111 fiu

3.860.762.819
1.346.487.585
1.106.978.098
488.944.204
349.408.990
315.580.000
722.782.585
512.594.806
276.052.821
627.218.509
1.144.992.270
10.751.802.687

QO UTIINIWINIVAINLYNONFISUWILUSN

3.154.189.860
1.115.135.020
1.032.724.279
505.378.455
275.413.115
298.900.000
417.829.955
383.913.939
195.412.200
277.244.330
371.272.481
8.027.413.634

724.000.000 Ay



TuawPunuiuasmEInIy

22. (YU UUESvIAg)SuMmajean, Jan

Q187918 ((Fiundn)
(uustiotd (0in)
(uus sz (0H)
aicsaugadi

& A Y a P
JUKLNNEA LA

23. 219971991 N9UT(

NV 2SIV 10 NNNWNIO

RHB®

2023 2022

iy fu

405.848.926 (561.793.297)
8.010.227.282 5.441.844.375
8.416.076.208 4.880.051.078
(26.776.255.809) (11.001.881.108)
(18.360.179.601) (6.121.830.030)

99011UANTIUH08K19INS UKL UUi]UUj (anii 67/awa J95uR 18 m]m 2019 gsnlnadzniy
g”wﬂucmjam J1(iou9INeUNIL zn.ucjaJUjaU‘Za mauwmcnuma“mmcﬂugwammo (€ AgUzn
mmmjcﬂuammum‘iu UU 219 DSam 20% (2022: 20%) 28j;]ﬂU\COmeJOU1L‘183ERIUS"m8U.

M1t neusneuwIu L
(WU MUURILIUINTIN
din: awSutidfinemnsy
nata/(21aviv) 1n1su9ansu29jd

2100 UINUSNUIIINT IV

Mt Wi

Nnaca/2aaviv (ud

819U E01WSaN19IN8VHITS

2023

111

22.344.910.706
722.206.472.194

(726.340.427.038)
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The Company’s Financial Statement

RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central bank
Deposits and placement with other banks
Loans and advances to customers
Right-of-use assets

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES

Deposits from customers
Amount due to parent company
Other liabilities

Income tax payable

Lease liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Paid-up capital

Legal reserve

Retained earnings/(deficits)

TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes

12
13
14
23
15

16
17

2023
LAK

794.997.751.116
46.816.685.987
407.750.658.663
4.739.533.040
17.140.497.574
5.624.282.885

RHB®

2022
LAK

687.745.926.802
169.440.163.545
280.982.799.655
5.918.976.167
19.833.271.342
6.433.776.918

19.944.696.586 17.851.376.894
1.297.014.105.851  1.188.206.291.323
102.419.969.277 75.619.024.047

641.613.010.233
19.581.103.203
758.235.421
13.221.408.372
777.593.726.506

622.275.966.498
19.133.784.327
13.043.824.889
730.072.599.761

500.000.062.500
2.130.187.655

460.300.050.000
2.130.187.655

17.290.129.190 (4.296.546.093)
519.420.379.345 458.133.691.562
1.297.014.105.851  1.188.206.291.323

The accompanying notes on pages 130 to 132 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent auditor’s report — pages 69 to 96.
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RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

RHB &

The Company’s Financial Statement

STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Notes

Interest income
Interest expense
NET INTEREST INCOME 18

Net provision writeback for credit losses on
loans and advances 22

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER LOANS
AND ADVANCES IMPAIRMENT
WRITEBACK

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense
NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 19

Gain on disposal of property and equipment

Property and equipment written off

Foreign exchange gain/(loss), net

Payroll and other staff costs 20
General and administrative expenses 21
Depreciation and amortisation charges 8,9,10
TOTAL EXPENSES

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense 23

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

2023
LAK

73.858.909.366
(33.883.851.395)
39.975.057.971

18.360.179.601

58.335.237.572

1.755.815.872
(448.326.355)

(148.959.364)
8.976.867.121
(27.587.134.080)
(10.751.802.687)

2022
LAK

58.046.703.843
(23.555.088.198)
34.491.615.645

6.121.830.030

40.613.445.675

1.323.822.276
(335.567.370)
988.254.906

24.535.640
(187.730.954)
(17.835.614.325)
(8.027.413.634)

(7.786.787.375) (5.422.799.863)
(37.297.816.385)  (31.449.023.136)
22.344.910.704 10.152.677.445
(758.235.421) _

21.586.675.283

10.152.677.445

The accompanying notes on pages 130 to 132 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent auditor’s report — pages 69 to 96.
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RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD
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RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

RHB®

The Company’s Financial Statement

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Provision made for credit losses on loans and advances
Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Property and equipment written off
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss, net
Interest income
Interest expense
Operating loss before changes in operating assets and
liabilities
Increase in statutory deposits with BOL

(Decrease)/increase in deposits and placements with other banks

(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances to customers
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Increase in deposits from customers
Increase in deposits from parent company
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities
Interest received
Interest paid
Net cash generated from /(used) in operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Purchases of intangible fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments for lease liabilities

Proceeds from capital injection

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Effect of foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Non-cash financing activity relating to capital injection

Notes

22

10

18
18

W B

12
13

6

13,
16, 24(b)

2023
LAK

22.344.910.704

8.416.076.208
5.074.047.491
1.546.726.735
1.166.013.149
148.959.364
(8.451.385.046)
(73.858.909.366)
33.883.851.395
(9.729.719.366)

2022
LAK

10.152.677.445

4.880.051.078
3.366.617.312
723.991.056
1.332.191.495
(24.535.640)
7.166.187.170
(58.046.703.843)
23.555.088.198
(6.894.435.729)

(52.855.184.405)
111.412.000.000
(135.229.829.150)
(154.032.643)
26.800.945.230
47.232.830.902
(726.400.170)
71.919.622.325
(32.824.852.401)
25.845.380.322

(2.415.513.042)

(157.413.984.299)
(101.522.000.000)
26.277.226.548
764.570.949
11.442.006.883
157.334.102.734
1.575.312.485
61.048.395.384
(22.202.467.169)
(29.591.272.214)

(503.975.574)

- 35.902.308
(737.232.702) (823.973.023)
(3.152.745.744) (1.292.046.289)

(3.170.384.964)

(2.705.951.605)

- 39.700.012.500
(3.170.384.964) 36.994.060.895
19.522.249.614 6.110.742.392
128.474.064.931 106.105.876.167
23.662.912.737 16.257.446.372
171.659.227.282  128.474.064.931
39.700.012.500 -

The accompanying notes on pages 130 to 132 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent auditor’s report — pages 69 to 96.
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The Company’s Financial Statement R" B ‘

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd (the Bank) is a commercial bank incorporated and registered in Lao
People’s Democratic Republic (Lao P.D.R.).

The Bank is a limited company by 100% foreign investment under the laws of Lao P.D.R. The Bank
operates its banking business under the Law on Commercial Bank No. 56/NA, dated 7 December 2018
and under the regulations of Bank of Lao P.D.R (BOL). The Bank had received its revised Banking
License No.04/BOL dated 24 March 2021 (replaced Banking License No. 10/BOL dated 30 April
2014) and Enterprise Registration Certificate No.0628/ERA dated 19 April 2021 (replaced Enterprise
Registration Certificate No.213/ERA dated 30 May 2014).

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide comprehensive banking and related financial services
in Lao P.D.R.

The Bank is 100% fully owned by RHB Bank Berhad. In December 2023, RHB Bank Berhad had
injected additional paid up capital of LAK 39.700.012.500, increasing the registered capital of the Bank
from LAK 460.300.050.000 to LAK 500.000.062.500. The number of shares issued is at 49.751.250
(2022: 45.801.000) at issue price of LAK 10.050 per share.

The registered office of the Bank is at Unit No.1, House No. 008, Kaysone Phomvihane Road, Phonxay
Village, Lao P.D.R.

The Bank’s BOD has reviewed these financial statements and approved for their issuance on
29 March 2024.

. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below:
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant accounting regulations and
notifications of BOL and accounting policies of the Bank. The accounting principles applied may
differ from generally accepted accounting principles adopted in other countries and jurisdictions. The
accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and financial
performance in accordance with other jurisdictions. Consequently, these financial statements are
addressed only to those who are informed about the Bank’s accounting policies and the relevant
accounting regulations and notifications of BOL.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
affecting the amounts reported as assets and liabilities, the disclosure of any contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenues and expenses in the reported
periods. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
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R ” B ‘ The Company’s Financial Statement

2.2 Measurement and presentation currency

The Bank maintains its records in Lao Kip (LAK) and presents financial statements in LAK.

2.3 Foreign currency transactions and translation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than LAK at year end are translated
into LAK at exchange rates ruling on the statement of the financial report date. Income and
expenses arising in foreign currencies during the period are converted into LAK at rates ruling on
the transaction dates. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation of such monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the statement of income
when earned and incurred.

2.4 Financial instruments

The Bank's significant financial assets and liabilities include cash and balances with central bank,
deposits and placement with other banks, loans and advances, deposits from customers, amount due
to parent company, other assets, other liabilities and lease liabilities. The accounting policies for
the recognition and measurement of these items are disclosed in the respective accounting policies.

2.5 Recognition of interest income and expense

Interest income recognition

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis and is recognised at the nominal interest rates
stipulated in the loan contracts with clients except in relation to non-performing accounts.

As per BOL guideline no. 334/AD, dated 11 March 2019, where an account becomes non-
performing, the recording of interest is suspended and interest income already recognised will be
reversed. Interest income will be recognised if accrued interest on non-performing loans will be
subsequently collected. Customer accounts are deemed to be non-performing where repayments
are in arrears for more than three months or 89 days.

Interest expense

Interest expense on deposits from customers and banks are recognised on an accrual basis and at
the approved interest rates.

2.6 Recognition of fee and commission income

Fee and commission income from the various activities of the Bank is accrued using the following
bases:

e Loan arrangement fees and commissions on services and facilities extended to customers are
recognised on the occurrence of such transactions.

e Commitment fees and guarantees on services and facilities extended to customers are
recognised as income over the period in which the services and facilities are extended.

e Service charges and processing fees are recognised when the service is provided.
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2.7 Cash and cash equivalents = 3
g o

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and short-term deposits maturing {g é
within thirty (30) days. % -

2.8 Loans and advances to customers

“uoneuLIoyuy

Loans and advances are originated by the Bank providing money to a customer for purposes

other than short-term profit taking. They are stated at the outstanding principal balances less an

SAITAIS

impairment allowance for doubtful loans and advances, to reflect the estimated recoverable amount.
Loans and advances except bank overdrafts are shown exclusive of accrued interest receivable.

puy syonpoiq

2.9 Provision for credit losses

In accordance with the regulation 512/BOL dated 29 June 2018, the Bank is required to classify
loans and create a provision for impairment losses. Accordingly, loans are classified into performing
loans or non-performing loans based on their payment arrears status and other qualitative factors.
Loans classified as normal or pass (group A) and watch list or special mention (group B) are

Suip[ing :uoIsIA AJIqeure)sng

considered as performing loans. Loans classified as substandard (group C), doubtful (group D)
and loss (group E) are considered as non-performing loans. The method of provision calculation
mentions that banks can take into consideration the collateral value with a certain prescribed

uonnadwo)) puy IR

percentage indicated in the regulation to be deducted from the loan outstanding before applying
the provision rates.

Provisions are categorised as general and specific based on the loan classification. Below is the
summary of provision rates applicable for each loan classification as at the balance sheet date:

Group Category Number of days Provision rate

past due T =
Performing (general) % é_
A Normal or pass Within 29 days 0.5% S %
B Watch list or special 30 to 89 days 3% ) E
mention &
Non-Performing (Specific) -
C Substandard 90 to 179 days 20% 2
D Doubtful 180 to 359 days  50% £ 2
E Loss From 360 days 100% | £
S 7
2.10 Intangible assets .
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire % Zi
and bring to use the specific software. Computer software licences are subsequently carried at = ’

cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 5 years. ri;
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2.11 Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to statement of income during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property and equipment is provided for on a straight-line basis to write down the
cost of each asset to its residual value over the estimated useful life, at the following annual rates:

Category Depreciation rate

Buildings and improvements 5% or over the period of the lease
Office equipment 20%

Computer equipment 20% -25%

Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Leasehold improvements are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. There are no material adjustments arising from the review that would
require disclosure in the financial statements.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
included in statement of income. At the end of the reporting period, the Bank assesses whether there
is any indication of impairment. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount
of the asset is written down to its recoverable amount.

2.12 Statutory deposits

Under the requirement of the Law on Commercial Bank No. 56/NA, dated 07 December 2018,
commercial banks are required to appropriate net profit to regulatory reserve fund, business
expansion fund, and other funds.

In accordance with (Revised) Enterprise Law No. 46/NA, dated 26 December 2013 Capital
Adequacy, the regulatory reserve fund shall be provided annually at 10% from profit after tax.
When this regulatory reserve fund accumulates half of registered capital, the company may suspend
the deduction, unless otherwise provided by Law of Limited Company.

76



RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

The Company’s Financial Statement R" B ‘

2.13 Leases for lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date which the
leased asset is available for use by the Bank. Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the fixed

“JUOIDIE)S [BIOUBUL]
s Auedwo)) ay [,

payments (including in-substance fixed payments).

[eIOUSD)
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Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the

measurement of liability.

SIITAISS
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The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If the rate cannot

be really determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Bank, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic

Teysng

2Imn,{ spqeu

environment with similar terms, security, and conditions.

Suip[ing :uorsI

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability. Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful

life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in income statement. Short-term leases are leases with a lease

uonnadwo)) puy IR

term of 12 months or less.

pIeOg

2.14 Employee benefit

amjonng uoneziuesio

a) Short term employee benefits

PuY SI0J0211(] ]

Wages, salaries paid, annual leave and sick leave and other leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Bank.

IO QANNIIXY

b) Post-employment benefits

JOIYD) Y, WoL,] 9FeSSA]

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Bank by the National Social Security
Fund Office which belongs to the Ministry of Labour and Social Welfare. The Bank is required to
contribute to these post-employment benefits by paying social insurance premium to the Social

Insurance Agency at the rate of 6% of employee’s basic salary on a monthly basis or of ceiling
LAK4,500,000 in case employee’s basic salary higher than ceiling rate. The Bank has no further
significant obligation concerning post-employment benefits for the employees other than this.

¢) Termination benefits

areys oy [ 0] Hoday s Joypny juspuadopuy
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In accordance with Article 90 of the Amended Labour Law No. 43/NA, dated 24 December 2013,
the Bank has the obligation to pay allowance for employees who are terminated by dismissal in

the following cases:

Py “0D) 9[0S 0BT
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e Compensation for the cancellation of employment contracts shall be 10% of the last salary
or wage multiplied by the total number of months worked;

e For unjustified termination of employment contracts in accordance with the Article 88 of the
Amended Labour law, compensation will be 15% of the last salary or wage multiplied by the
total number of months worked; and

e Cancellation of employment contracts for reasons not specified in the Amended Labour
Law, the Bank must implement compensation in accordance with the agreement between
the Bank and the employee.

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

2.16 Tax

Provision is made for taxation on the current year’s profits, based on the Tax Law governing taxation
within Lao P.D.R. In accordance with the Law on Income Tax No.067/NA, dated 18 June 2019,
the Bank is subject to 20% (2022: 20%) on total taxable profit, and profit taxes shall be paid every
20™ of July of the year and every 20™ January of the following year.

Tax losses incurred in any tax year can be carried forward to offset against profit realised in the
following five tax years from the year loss was incurred subject to certification by the National
Audit Authority or an independent audit company and with the acknowledgement of the tax
authorities. Upon expiration of such period, any remaining loss not so deducted may no longer
be deducted from profits.

2.17 Related parties

Enterprises or individuals that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or
are under controlled by or are under common control with the Bank including holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the Bank. Associates and individuals
owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Bank that gives them significant
influence over the Bank key management personnel including directors and officers of the Bank and
close members of the family of these individuals and companies associated with these individuals
also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship, and not merely the legal form.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

The guidelines and policies adopted by the Bank to manage the risks that arise in the conduct

s Auedwo)) ay [,

of its business activities are as follows:

“JUSWIAJE)S [BIOURUL]

3.1 Credit risk

[eIOUSD)
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Credit risk is the potential loss of revenue and principal in the form of specific provisions

as a result of defaults by the borrowers or counterparties through its lending and investing
activities. The primary exposure to credit risk arises through its loans and advances. The

SAITAIS

puy syonpoiq

amount of credit exposure in this regard is represented by the carrying amounts of the assets
on the statement of financial position. The lending activities are guided by the Bank’s credit
policy to ensure that the overall objectives in the area of lending are achieved i.e. that the
loans portfolio is strong and healthy and credit risks are well diversified. The credit policy
documents are the credit control and recovery manual, credit operations manual, and credit
policy manual. Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Bank’s business. Management therefore

Z}
Z

2Imn,{ spqeu
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carefully manages its exposure to credit risk.

3.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse movement in the level of market prices
or rates, the two key components being foreign currency exchange risk and interest rate risk.

uonnadwo)) puy IR

(i) Foreign currency exchange risk

pIeOg

Foreign currency exchange risk refers to the risk of adverse exchange rate movements on

amjonng uoneziuesio

foreign currency exchange positions taken from time to time. The Bank maintains a policy

PuY SI0J0211(] ]

of not exposing itself to large foreign exchange positions. Any foreign currency exchange

open positions are monitored against the operating requirements, predetermined position 7 =
limits and stop-loss limits. % f_
(i1) Interest rate risk s f
Interest rate risk refers to the volatility in net interest income as a result of changes in the )
levels of interest rate and shifts in the composition of the assets and liabilities. Interest rate = g—
risk is managed through close monitoring of returns on investment, market pricing and z §
cost of funds. The potential reduction in net interest income from an unfavourable interest ;‘5 52_
rate movement is monitored against the risk tolerance limits set. % z
3.3 Liquidity risk x
% B
Liquidity risk relates to the ability to maintain sufficient liquid assets to meet its financial E ?
commitments and obligations when they fall due at a reasonable cost. The management of ~
the Bank closely monitors all inflows and outflows and maturity gaps. Movements in loans &
and customers’ deposits are monitored and liquidity requirements adjusted to ensure sufficient ;i
liquid assets to meet its financial commitments and obligations as and when they fall due. E
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4. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK

Cash on hand (Note 4.1)

Balances with central bank other than long term fixed
deposit and mandatory reserve deposits (Note 4.2)

Included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)

Long term fixed deposit and mandatory reserve
deposits with central bank (Note 4.3)

2023
LAK

21.982.714.794

142.969.826.501
164.952.541.295

630.045.209.821

2022
LAK

21.101.341.058

89.454.560.328
110.555.901.386

577.190.025.416

794.997.751.116  687.745.926.802

4.1 Cash on hand
2023 2022
LAK LAK
Cash on hand — LAK 6.925.877.500 8.358.776.500
Cash on hand — foreign currencies 15.056.837.294 12.742.564.558
21.982.714.794  21.101.341.058

4.2 Balances with central bank other than long term fixed deposit and mandatory

reserve deposits

2023 2022
LAK LAK
Demand deposit 142.969.826.501 89.454.560.328

4.3 Long term fixed deposit and mandatory reserve deposits with central bank

2023 2022

LAK LAK

Compulsory reserve (i) 10.338.893.074 4.716.539.571
Statutory deposits (i1) 88.360.867 88.360.867
Long term fixed deposit (iii) 619.617.955.880 572.385.124.978
630.045.209.821 577.190.025.416

(i) These are deposits maintained in BOL as per BOL regulations. The balance is adjusted and calculated
at 8% (2022: 5%) of LAK and 10% ( 2022: 5%) of other foreign currencies, such as Thailand
Baht (THB) and United States Dollar (USD), on the average balance of bank and customer deposits,
such as savings accounts. current accounts and term deposits as of the year. These deposits do not
earn interest.

(i) The Bank maintains an additional statutory capital deposit with BOL. This deposit amount is
considered as a guarantee for the operations. Per regulation No.01/BOL dated 28 January 2010,
commercial banks and foreign branch which have permanent office, no longer needs to appropriate a
reserve of 25% of the registered capital and the investment capital. This deposit does not earn interest.

(iii) Long term fixed deposits maintained with BOL earn interest at 6.50% (2022: 6.50%) per annum with
a term of 1 (2022: 1) year and at 6.50% (2022: 6.50%) per annum with a term of 3 (2022: 3) years.
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5. DEPOSITS AND PLACEMENT WITH OTHER BANKS

Deposits and placement with other banks are analysed as follows:

Deposits included in cash and cash equivalents
Placement with other banks

a) Analysis by institution

Balances with domestic banks

Banque Pour Le Commerce Exterieur Lao — Vientiane
Branch

Balances with overseas banks
RHB Bank Berhad — Thailand (Note 24)
JP Morgan - Vietnam

Included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)

Placement with domestic banks

Acleda Bank Lao Ltd.

KasikornThai Bank Limited

Military Commercial Joint Stock Bank — Lao Branch
Saigon Thuong Tin Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd.
VietinBank Lao Limited

b) Analysis by currency

Domestic banks
LAK
USD
THB

2023
LAK

6.706.685.987
40.110.000.000

RHB®

2022
LAK

17.918.163.545
151.522.000.000

46.816.685.987 169.440.163.545
2023 2022

LAK LAK
1.365.601.783 970.855.469
1.365.601.783 970.855.469
2.372.371.672 14.465.480.299
2.968.712.532 2.481.827.777
5.341.084.204 16.947.308.076
6.706.685.987  17.918.163.545
2023 2022

LAK LAK
10.110.000.000  60.000.000.000
- 30.000.000.000
10.000.000.000 10.000.000.000
- 41.522.000.000
20.000.000.000 10.000.000.000
40.110.000.000 151.522.000.000
2023 2022

LAK LAK

30.487.853.899
10.444.327.590

543.420.294
41.475.601.783

135.829.365.390
16.537.563.724
125.926.354
152.492.855.468
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2.968.712.532

2.481.827.778

THB (Note 24) 2.372.371.672 14.465.480.299
5.341.084.204  16.947.308.077
46.816.685.987 169.440.163.545

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2023 2022
LAK LAK

164.952.541.295
6.706.685.987

Cash and balances with central bank (Note 4)
Deposits with other banks (Note 5)

110.555.901.386
17.918.163.545

171.659.227.282 128.474.064.931
7. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

2023 2022

LAK LAK

Loans and advances to customers 420.012.764.628  286.022.640.204
Provision (12.262.105.965)  (5.039.840.549)
407.750.658.663 280.982.799.655

Loans and advances to customers are analysed as follows:
a) Analysis by currency

2023 2022

LAK LAK

LAK 398.754.439.118  242.514.549.200
USD 21.258.325.510  41.732.509.228
THB - 1.775.581.776
420.012.764.628 286.022.640.204

b) Analysis by status of loan

2023 2022

LAK LAK

Performing loans 395.166.145.427  272.083.581.804
Non-performing loans 24.846.619.201 13.939.058.400
420.012.764.628 286.022.640.204
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¢) Analysis by classification of BOL

Performing loans
Normal Loans

Specific Mention Loans
Non-performing loans
Substandard Loans
Doubtful Loans

Loss Loans

d) Analysis by relationship

Customers

e) Analysis by economic sector

Industrial

Construction

Commercial

Transport and telecommunication
Service

Agriculture

Handicraft

Others

f) Analysis by resident status

Resident
Non-Resident

RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

2023
LAK

393.828.308.009
1.337.837.418

RHB®

2022
LAK

267.715.458.489
4.368.123.315

8.274.322.772 11.331.029.667
15.948.661.956 2.608.028.733
623.634.473 -
420.012.764.628 286.022.640.204
2023 2022

LAK LAK
420.012.764.628 286.022.640.204
2023 2022

LAK LAK

23.115.846.527
11.636.106.371
50.795.714.869
17.257.219.094
248.783.352.245
24.177.985.143

25.159.736.077
11.963.289.121
63.345.288.978
17.462.782.435
119.585.211.078
14.046.356.811

893.876.106 1.084.802.620
43.352.664.273 33.375.173.084
420.012.764.628 286.022.640.204
2023 2022

LAK LAK

418.706.102.460
1.306.662.168
420.012.764.628

277.269.554.165
8.753.086.039
286.022.640.204
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g) Analysis by security

2023 2022

LAK LAK
Secured 420.012.764.628 286.022.640.204

The movement in the allowance for performing loans is as follows:

2023 2022

LAK LAK
General provision
Beginning balance 1.469.620.246 1.872.578.453
Provision charged during the year 18.458.480.067 13.797.234.270
Reversal of provision during the year (18.052.631.141) (14.359.027.567)
Foreign exchange difference 133.806.862 158.835.090
At 31 December 2.009.276.034 1.469.620.246
Specific provision
Beginning balance 3.570.220.303 2.095.359.745
Provision charged during the year 25.715.684.811 16.079.005.058
Reversal of provision during the year (17.705.457.529) (10.637.160.683)
Utilisation for bad debt written off (1.504.388.859)  (3.968.293.471)
Foreign exchange difference 176.771.205 1.309.654
At 31 December 10.252.829.931 3.570.220.303

The breakdown of as at 31 December 2023 is as follows:

2023 2022

LAK LAK
Performing loans (general)
Normal 1.969.140.911 1.338.576.385
Special Mention 40.135.123 131.043.861
Non- performing Loans (specific)
Sub Standard 1.654.864.477 2.266.205.933
Doubtful 7.974.330.981 1.304.014.370
Loss 623.634.473 -
At 31 December 12.262.105.965 5.039.840.549
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8. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Cost

At 1 January
Adjustment (1)
At 31 December

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January

Charge for the year

At 31 December

Net book value at 31 December

The right-of-use assets recognised pertains to the lease of head office in Phonxay and branch offices

in Sithan Neau and Dongdok.

(i) The adjustment is related to the change the currency of payments in the rental contract of

Dongdok Branch from USD to LAK.

2023 2022 ;:
LAK LAK {
14.907.232.837  14.907.232.837 £ £
(13.429.978) - i F
14.893.802.859  14.907.232.837
(8.988.256.670)  (7.656.065.175) N
(1.166.013.149)  (1.332.191.495) =
(10.154.269.819)  (8.988.256.670) - -
4.739.533.040  5.918.976.167 E
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Movement of the balance of intangible assets for the year ended 31 December 2023 is as follows:

Computer In progress* Total
software
LAK LAK LAK

Cost
At 1 January 2023 14.526.048.509 279.724.815 14.805.773.324
Additions 736.230.719 1.001.983 737.232.702
As at 31 December 2023 15.262.279.228 280.726.798 15.543.006.026
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2023 (8.371.996.406) - (8.371.996.406)
Charge for the year (1.546.726.735) - (1.546.726.735)
As at 31 December 2023 (9.918.723.141) - (9.918.723.141)
Net book value
at 31 December 2023 5.343.556.087 280.726.798 5.624.282.885

*Intangible assets in progress during 2023 are related to Information Technology projects to enhance
the system.

Movement of the balance of intangible assets for the year ended 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Computer In progress* Total
software LAK LAK
LAK

Cost
At 1 January 2022 9.053.247.727 4.928.552.574 13.981.800.301
Additions 169.800.000 654.173.023 823.973.023
Reclassification 5.303.000.782 (5.303.000.782) -
As at 31 December 2022 14.526.048.509 279.724.815 14.805.773.324
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2022 (7.648.005.350) - (7.648.005.350)
Charge for the year (723.991.056) - (723.991.056)
As at 31 December 2022 (8.371.996.406) - (8.371.996.406)
Net book value
at 31 December 2022 6.154.052.103 279.724.815 6.433.776.918

*Intangible assets in progress during 2022 are related to Information Technology projects to enhance
the system.
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11. OTHER ASSETS
2023
LAK
Prepaid expenses (i) 889.965.382
Accrued interest receivable (i) 17.424.294.849
Others (iii) 1.630.436.355
19.944.696.586

RHB®

2022
LAK

869.559.086
15.485.007.808
1.496.810.000
17.851.376.894
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(i) Prepaid expenses include advance payments for lease line, software maintenance, and insurance.

(i) Accrued interest receivable includes interest receivable from loans to customers and deposits with

other banks. This also includes penalty receivable for the overdue loans.

(i) These include advance payment and bank supplies such as cheque books, passbooks and signature

verification slips.

12, DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

Deposits from customers are analysed as follows:

a) Analysis by types of deposit account

Current deposits
Saving Deposit
Term deposits

b) Analysis by currency

LAK
USD
THB

¢) Analysis by maturity

Within 3 months
4 to 6 months

7 to 12 months
Over 12 months

2023
LAK

10.160.581.056
17.754.263.122
74.505.125.099

2022
LAK

10.498.901.165
10.896.956.668
54.223.166.214

102.419.969.277 75.619.024.047
2023 2022

LAK LAK
36.821.501.565 19.301.667.709
52.366.677.223 39.967.850.583
13.231.790.489 16.349.505.755
102.419.969.277 75.619.024.047
2023 2022

LAK LAK
38.682.514.288 27.697.307.520

27.497.762.194
14.934.461.220
21.305.231.575
102.419.969.277

14.815.515.024
13.890.337.792
19.215.863.711
75.619.024.047
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d) Analysis by type of customer

2023 2022

LAK LAK

Individual 32.585.554.643 45.445.965.985
Non-individual 69.834.414.634 30.173.058.062
102.419.969.277 75.619.024.047

e) Analysis by type of relationship

2023 2022

LAK LAK

Staff 4.033.695.137 5.855.343.046
Customers 98.386.274.140 69.763.681.001
102.419.969.277 75.619.024.047

13. AMOUNT DUE TO PARENT COMPANY

2023 2022

LAK LAK

Fixed deposits (i) 619.617.955.880  572.385.124.978
Intercompany payables (i1) 21.995.054.353 49.890.841.520

641.613.010.233  622.275.966.498

(i) Fixed deposits denominated in USD carry interest rates from 2.00% to 5.80% (2022: 4.00% to
4.50%) per annum with terms ranging from 1 month to 3 years (2022: 1 week to 3 years).

(ii) Intercompany payables include purchases of property and equipment initially made by RHB Bank
Berhad - Malaysia during the start-up phase of the Bank. The intercompany payable is repayable
on demand. In 2023, intercompany payables of USD 1.931.874, which is equivalent to LAK
39.700.012.500, has been converted to share capital as approved by the BOL under letter with
reference 1035/BSD dated 21 December 2023.

14. OTHER LIABILITIES

2023 2022
LAK LAK
Accrued interest payable 11.540.938.421 10.481.939.427
Accruals, provisions and other liabilities (i) 8.040.164.782 8.651.844.900

19.581.103.203 19.133.784.327

(i) Accruals, provisions, and other liabilities include banker’s cheques, accruals for utilities, bonus,
and other liabilities to suppliers.
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15. LEASE LIABILITIES
2023 2022
LAK LAK
Lease liabilities from property 13.221.408.372 13.043.824.889
(a) Scheduled repayments of lease liabilities are as follows:
2023 2022
LAK LAK

1.925.932.500
11.295.475.872
13.221.408.372

Within one year
Beyond one year

2.085.990.562
10.957.834.327
13.043.824.889

The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 was LAK 3.682.699.194 (2022: LAK 3.183.637.594) which

includes the principal and interest payments.

16. PAID-UP CAPITAL

2023 2022
LAK LAK
At 1 January 460.300.050.000  420.600.037.500
Additional paid-up capital (Notes 13, 24(b)) 39.700.012.500 39.700.012.500
At 31 December 500.000.062.500 460.300.050.000
17. LEGAL RESERVE
There was no movement in legal reserve fund during the year.
2023 2022
LAK LAK
At 1 January/At 31 December 2.130.187.655 2.130.187.655
18. NET INTEREST INCOME
2023 2022
LAK LAK

Interest income
Interest income from customers 25.970.186.258
47.888.723.108

73.858.909.366

Interest income from banks

23.958.537.685
34.088.166.158
58.046.703.843

Interest expense

Interest expense from customers (3.470.052.346)
Interest expense from parent company (29.901.484.819)
Interest expense from lease liability (512.314.230)

(33.883.851.395)
Net interest income 39.975.057.971

(2.823.945.023)
(20.253.457.186)
(477.685.989)
(23.555.088.198)
34.491.615.645
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19. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income
Loan processing fees

Penalty fees

Commitment fees

Other fees

Fee and commission expense
Commission fees
Wire transfer fees

Net fee and commission income

20. PAYROLL AND OTHER STAFF COSTS

Salaries and wages
Bonus
Other staft costs

The Company’s Financial Statement

2023
LAK

1.230.042.137
106.636.347
53.310.474
365.826.914

(58.318.376)

2022
LAK

635.276.754
165.278.561
144.660.257
378.606.704

(71.462.704)

21. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Repair and maintenance
Insurance expense
Professional fees (i)
Communication expense
Utilities

Security fees

Office stationery expense
Meal and travelling

Marketing and public relations
Board of directors' fees and allowances
Other administrative expenses

(390.007.979) (264.104.666)
(448.326.355) (335.567.370)
1.307.489.517 988.254.906

2023 2022

LAK LAK
20.270.334.980  15.900.721.328
5.569.876.071 652.107.095
1.746.923.029 1.282.785.902
27.587.134.080  17.835.614.325
2023 2022

LAK LAK

3.860.762.819
1.346.487.585
1.106.978.098
488.944.204
349.408.990
315.580.000
722.7782.585
512.594.806
276.052.821
627.218.509
1.144.992.270
10.751.802.687

3.154.189.860
1.115.135.020
1.032.724.279
505.378.455
275.413.115
298.900.000
417.829.955
383.913.939
195.412.200
277.244.330
371.272.481
8.027.413.634

(i) Professional fee includes audit fee of LAK 724.000.000 (2022: LAK 677.260.000).
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22. NET PROVISION WRITEBACK FOR CREDIT LOSSES ON LOANS AND

ADVANCES
2023 2022
LAK LAK
Charge/(Writeback)
General provision (net) 405.848.926 (561.793.297)
Specific provision (net) 8.010.227.282 5.441.844.375
Net charge 8.416.076.208 4.880.051.078
Bad debt recovered (26.776.255.809)  (11.001.881.108)
(18.360.179.601) (6.121.830.030)
23. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

In accordance with the Income Tax Law No. 67/NA, dated 18 June 2019 stipulated by the President
of the National Assembly, applicable profit tax that should be applied to both domestic and foreign
enterprises that hold legal entities is 20% (2022: 20%) of total taxable profit income.

2023 2022

LAK LAK
Profit before tax for the year 22.344.910.706 10.152.677.445
Non-deductible expenses 722.206.472.194  301.333.394.184
Non-taxable income (726.340.427.038) (300.788.033.800)
Taxable profit for the year 18.210.955.862 10.698.037.829
Loss carried forward from previous year (14.419.778.757)  (25.117.816.586)
Taxable profit for the year 18.210.955.862 10.698.037.829
Profit/Loss for the year 3.791.177.105  (14.419.778.757)
Income tax expense at applicable tax rate 758.235.421 -

In 2023, the Bank had taxable profit where loss carried forward from 2022 has been applied. The loss
carried forward has already been fully utilised as of 31 December 2023. As of 31 December 2022, the
Bank has outstanding loss carried forward amounting to LAK 14.419.778.757 which can be carried
forward to offset against taxable profit to be realised for the remaining years from 2023 to 2025 subject
to certification by the National Audit Authority with the acknowledgement from the tax authorities.
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24. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

The Bank is 100% owned by RHB Bank Berhad — Malaysia, which is the Bank’s ultimate
controlling party.

A few numbers of banking transactions were entered into with related parties in the normal course
of business, which were mostly deposits.

Deposits from key management personnel comprise savings and fixed deposits, all of which are
unsecured. Savings deposits are repayable on demand and carry interest rates ranging from 1.60%
to 2.00% (2022: 1.60% to 2.00%) per annum, depending on the currency. Fixed deposits carry
interest rates ranging from 2.50% to 6.75% (2022: 2.50% to 6.10%) per annum, depending on
the term and currency. Fixed deposits from key management personnel have terms ranging from
1 to 36 months (2022: 1 to 36 months). Loans and advances carry interest rates of 4.00% (2022:
4.00%) per annum with terms ranging from 72 to 300 months (2022: 72 to 300 months).

The volume of related-party transactions, outstanding balances, at the year-end, and relating
expense and income for the year are as follows:

RHB Bank Berhad - Malaysia (Holding Bank)

(a) Fixed deposits

At 1 January

Deposits withdrawn during the year
Foreign exchange loss

As at 31 December (Note 13)

Interest payable
Interest expense (Note 18)

(b) Intercompany payable

At 1 January

Transfer to paid-up capital
Foreign exchange loss

As at 31 December (Note 13)
Monthly swift payment

RHB Bank Thailand

(C) Current deposit

At 1 January

Deposits (withdrawn)/placed during the year
Foreign exchange gain

At 31 December (Note 5)

94

2023
LAK

572.385.124.978
(109.883.393.443)
157.116.224.345
619.617.955.880

2022
LAK

415.051.022.244
(43.795.393.443)
201.129.496.177
572.385.124.978

9.243.342.492
29.901.484.819

49.890.841.520

8.609.299.621
20.253.457.186

33.605.808.938

(39.700.012.500) -
11.804.225.333  16.285.032.582
21.995.054.353  49.890.841.520

390.007.979 264.104.666
14.465.480.299 5.258.538.455

(16.638.764.521) 7.026.693.337

4.545.655.894 2.180.248.507
2.372.371.672  14.465.480.299
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2023 2022 z ¢
LAK LAK ¢ ¢
Director and key management personnel (gf g
(a) Deposits from customers
At 1 January 5.089.853.299 3.853.814.755
Deposits withdrawn during the year (3.281.068.412) (155.198.039) =
Foreign exchange loss 1.031.830.036 1.391.236.583  , -
As at 31 December 2.840.614.923 5.089.853.299 g
Interest payable 1.735.857.338 97.372.457 »
Interest expense 3.470.052.346 163.095.181 %
(b) Loans and advances to customers é
At 1 January 9.849.249.528 10.265.387.207 g__
Loans disbursed during the year 1.096.000.000 1.255.000.000 "
Loan repaid during the year (302.526.632) (1.671.137.679) g
As at 31 December 10.642.722.896 9.849.249.528 o
Interest receivable 9.929.866 8.695.750 g
Interest income 424.636.120 492.310.445 §
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 15.207.843.835 10.606.541.503 %
Management fees 652.130.804 - &
Social security contribution (i) 31.590.000 40.770.000 g

(1) Social security contributions by the Bank include the post-employment benefit.

TeSSIIA
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25. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES g
(a) Capital commitment g’:

In order to meet the minimum capital requirement of LAK 1.000.000.000.000, as per revised £ =

Law on Commercial Bank No. 39/NA, dated 17 July 2023, RHB Bank Berhad needs to inject i f%
additional capital of LAK 499.999.937.500. The timing of the capital injection is yet to be ;w“ ;3_
announced by BOL. s =
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(b) Credit facilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Bank had the contractual amounts of the Bank’s off-financial
position, financial instruments that commits it to extend credit to customers. Unutilised

overdrafts are those credit limit provided to customers but have not yet been withdrawn as
at 31 December 2023.

2023 2022
LAK LAK
Unutilised overdraft 8.681.597.267 9.241.879.322
Undisbursed loans 5.335.000.000 90.065.000.000

14.016.597.267 99.306.879.322

(c) Taxation contingencies

The taxation system in the Lao PDR is relatively new and is characterised by numerous taxes and
frequently changing legislation, which is often unclear, Contradictory, and subject to interpretation.
Often, differing interpretations exist among numerous taxation authorities and jurisdictions. Taxes
are subject to review and investigation by a number of authorities, who are enabled by law to
impose severe fines, penalties and interest charges. These facts may create tax risks in Lao PDR
substantially more significant than in other countries. Management believes that it has adequately
provided for tax liabilities based on its interpretation of tax legislation. However, the relevant
authorities may have differing interpretations and the effects could be significant.
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General Information
Issuer

Type of Business

Headquarters

Registration Number
Homepage
Telephone

Facsimile

Registered Capital

Branches

Telephone

Facsimile

Branches

Telephone

RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

General Information R" B ‘

RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd
The Company conducts banking business and is member No. 36
of The Bank of Lao PDR.

Deposit

Lending

Foreign currency transaction

Service between customers and other banking service

Unit No.01, House No. 008, Kaysone Phomvihane Road,
Phonxay Village,

Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.

01-00019470

https://www.rhbgroup.com/laos

+856(21) 455 116

+856(21) 455 112

LAK 500,000,062,500

Village, Sikhottabong District,  Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR
+856(21) 221 010

+856(21) 221 013

Xaythany District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR

+856(21) 773 050

. Sithan Neua Branch, Unit No.06, Souphanouvong Road, Sithan Neua

: Dongdok Branch Unit No.08, Dongdok Road, Saphangmeuk Village,
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References

Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited.

4th Floor, Allianz Building, 33 Lane Xang Avenue, P.O. Box 7003
Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR

Telephone: +856 (21) 222 718-9

Facsimile: +856 (21) 222 723

www.pwc.com/la

98



RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

General Information R"B ‘

RHB Banking Group

RHB Banking Group is a multinational regional financial services provider that is committed to delivering
complete solutions to customers through differentiated segment offerings and an ecosystem that supports
simple, fast and seamless customer experiences, underpinned by a cohesive and inspired workforce, and
relationships built with stakeholders.

Ranked among the top banks in Malaysia and with a significant presence in ASEAN, RHB has strong
market leadership in Malaysia across targeted products and segments. With more than 14,000 employees
Group-wide, RHB’s presence spans 8 countries in the ASEAN region.

RHB Banking Group is a fully integrated financial services group in Malaysia. The Group’s core busi-
nesses are structured into five business pillars, namely Group Community Banking, Group Wholesale
Banking, Group Shariah Business, Group International Business and Group Insurance.

RHB Corporate Strategy

RHB Banking Group has introduced our new 3-Year Corporate Strategy, “Together We Progress 2024
(“TWP24”), which aims to build on the foundations of our previous FIT22 strategy and supercharge the
next phase of growth.

TWP24 will drive the Group’s ambition to be a leader in Service Excellence, in line with our new Purpose
Statement of ‘Making Progress Happen for Everyone’, centered around three strategic objectives —

Be Everyone’s Primary Bank, Priorities Customer Experience, and Drive Quality Growth.

Our TWP24 strategy highlights a strong customer-first culture and continues to enhance new customer
centric ideation through seven key focus areas. The focus areas are designed to promote a more robust
performance, enabled by enhanced digital, IT and analytics capabilities, and position the Group as a key
player in the sustainability space.

RHB Banking Group

The RHB Banking Group has a proud history, having won many prestigious awards over the years since
its establishment. It is Malaysia’s fourth largest financial services group and enjoys a wide presence
across the ASEAN region. The Group has aspirations to emerge as one of the top thzree financial services
groups in the ASEAN region and in Hongkong by 2022.

The Group’s entire range of financial products and services are made available to its customers through
its branches as well as its online banking platform.

Our core businesses are streamlined into seven Strategic Business Groups (SBGs):
e Group Retail Banking
e Group Business & Transaction Banking

e Group Wholesale Banking
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e Group Shariah Business
e  Group Insurance

e  Group International Business
RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd

RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd (the Bank) is a commercial bank incorporated and registered in Lao People’s
Democratic Republic (Lao P.D.R.).

The Bank is a limited company by 100% foreign investment under the laws of Lao P.D.R. The Bank
operates its banking business under the Law on Commercial Bank (Revised) No. 39/NA, dated 17 July
2023 and under the regulations of Bank of Lao P.D.R (BOL). The Bank had received its revised Banking
License No.04/BOL dated 24 March 2021 (Replace Banking License No. 10/BOL dated 30 April 2014)
and Enterprise Registration Certificate No.0628/ERA dated 19 April 2021, Replace Enterprise Registra-
tion Certificate No.213/ERA dated 30 May 2014.

The principal activities of the Bank are to provide comprehensive banking and related financial services
in Lao P.D.R.

The Bank is 100% fully owned by RHB Bank Berhad. In December 2023, RHB Bank Berhad additionally
paid up a capital of LAK 39.700.012.500, therefore the registered capital of the Bank increased from
LAK460.300.050.000 to LAK500.000.062.500 with 49.751.250 (2022: 45.801.000) shares at issue price
of LAK 10.050 per share.

RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd have opened 2 branches as follows:

Sithan Neua Branch was established on 19th August, 2016. The office is located at Unit No. 06, Souph-
anouvong Road, Sithan Neua Village, Sikhottabong District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.

Dongdok branch was established on 26th January, 2018. The office is located at Unit No. 08, Dongdok
Road, Saphangmuek Village, Xaythany District, Vientiane Capital, Lao PDR.
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Products and Services

The Bank is established to conduct banking activities, which include mobilizing and receiving
short, medium and long term deposit funds from various organizations and individuals; lending
on a short, medium and long term basis to various organizations and individuals based on the na-
ture and repayment ability of the borrowers; conducting foreign currency transactions; provid-
ing transaction services between customers; and other banking services as approved by the Bank
of Lao PDR ("BOL"), through the Bank's Head Office and a branch in Vientiane Capital city.

The Bank offers a full range of retail and commercial banking products and services, including:

puy spnpoig

e Current Account

e Savings Account

e Fixed Deposit

Suip[ing :uoIsIA AJIqeure)sng

e Remittance and Foreign Exchange
e Housing Loan

e Overdraft
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e Term Loan
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e Revolving Credit

e Trade Finance Products and Services

puy s1030211 JO

Current Account

Our RHB Current Account is a powerful cash management tool as it can save you trips to the bank to

IO QANNIIXY

pay those bills and expenses. Manage your finances and enjoy these benefits:
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e Cheque book facility

e -24hour ATM facility
e Free ATM Card
e Monthly statement for easy monitoring

e Choice of account in LAK, USD or THB
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Savings Account

Our RHB Savings Account paves the way to save for your dream home, your car, your child's education
or even a computer. Grow your family's finances and enjoy these benefits:

e Manage your account easily with a Savings Passbook
e -24hour ATM facility
e Free ATM Card
e Earn attractive interest rates — calculated daily, credited monthly
e Choice of account in LAK, USD or THB
Fixed Deposit

Our RHB Fixed Deposit offers with attractive interest rates and choice of tenure and is an effective in-
vestment tool. Build your finances and enjoy these benefits:

e Earn attractive interest rates

e Tenure from 1 month onwards

e Short and long-term placements

e Auto renewal

e Choice of account in LAK, USD or THB
Remittance and Foreign Exchange

Our RHB Remittance can help you move your money within Lao PDR and around the world efficiently
and securely. Transfer funds with ease and enjoy these benefits:

e Choice of major currencies
e Competitive fees and charges

RHB Money Exchange Service allows you to buy and sell currencies such as LAK/USD/THB at the best
possible rates. Exchange your money with ease and enjoy these benefits:

e No fees

e Competitive exchange rates

102



RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

Products And Services R"B ‘

Housing Loan

RHB Housing Loan, with flexible options, is the key to owning your dream house. Get the home of your
dreams and enjoy these benefits:

e Financing up to 70 % of the property value

e Loan period up to 20 years

e Attractive interest rates

Overdraft

puy spnpoig

RHB Overdraft facility is designed to meet your financing needs. Expand your business and working
capital, or build your business with us and enjoy these benefits:

e Meet short term financing gap that may arise from the business operating cycle

e Attractive interest rates

Suip[ing :uoIsIA AJIqeure)sng

Term Loan

RHB Term Loan, with many value added features and flexible options, enables you to start a new busi-
ness, expand your current business or provides working capital. Build your business with us and enjoy
these benefits:
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e Flexible repayment period of up to 10 years
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e Attractive interest rates

Revolving Credit
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RHB Revolving Credit is a short-term credit service designed to provide cash flow in a timely manner to
make up for periodic or seasonal fluctuations of your business. Suitable for businesses with fluctuating
or seasonal incomes. Manage your business with us and enjoy these benefits:

IO QANNIIXY

e Meet short term financing gap that may arise from the business operating cycle
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e Attractive interest rates

Trade Finance Products and Services

RHB Trade Finance Products and Services help you in your import and export business; take the burden
and worry of non-delivery of goods away from you. Build your business by letting our expertise work
for you. Bank with us, we are here to get things done and help you enjoy these advantages:

e Easy and fast process
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e Help to collect your expert proceeds expeditiously

e Help to cut down the risk of business

e Competitive commission rates / charges
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e Flexible term of payments
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Sustainability Vision: Nurturing Future Generations

RHB's sustainability journey began in 2018 with a purpose to building a brighter future for generations
to come. Our Group Sustainability Framework guides us in integrating environmental, social, and gov-
ernance (ESG) principles into everything we do. It's a living document, continuously evolving to reflect
stakeholder expectations and the evolving needs of our communities.

Beyond environmental advocacy, RHB Bank Laos actively cultivates financial literacy among young
Laotians, recognizing it as a crucial skill for future success and well-being. In collaboration with the Lao
Football Federation, we've developed engaging financial education sessions targeted at children aged
12-17 years old.

Our partnership with the Lao Football Federation isn't just about promoting financial literacy, provides
a platform for positive role models and engaging narratives, making financial education both accessible
and fun. We believe that by equipping young Laotians with financial literacy tools, we're investing in
their future and contributing to a more resilient and prosperous society.

RHB Bank Lao actively promotes environmental, social, and governance (ESG) principles within its
operations and communities. Through workshops, discussions, and seminars, we equip our management
and staff with the knowledge and tools to contribute to a more sustainable future. We also cultivate a
paperless culture and encourage the use of digital documents, minimizing our environmental footprint.

il
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Empowering the Next Generation Through Sports:

The 2023 RHB Junior Football Cup, held in collaboration with the Lao Football Federation and Master
Seven Football Club, marked another successful year of RHB Bank's commitment to nurturing the next
generation through sports. This year's tournament surpassed previous entries with 24 teams, featuring 6
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all-girls' teams and 16 all-boys' teams.
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The RHB Junior Football Cup aligns with RHB Banking Group's corporate responsibility initiatives,

aiming to empower and inspire Lao youth through sports. The tournament fosters confidence, hope, and

pride, equipping young players with valuable life skills beyond the football field. The event attracted % é
close to 200 children from numerous primary and secondary schools across Vientiane and even Luang . ;>_
Prabang, signifying the program's growing reach and impact. -
The increased participation, particularly among girls' teams, showcased the tournament's inclusivity and § :%r
its ability to engage a wider audience. RHB Bank remains committed to providing opportunities for all % %
Lao children to hone their talents and experience the joy of playing football. This commitment stems % 5
from a strong belief in giving back to the communities we serve. é:
The RHB Junior Football Cup enjoys the support of the Lao Football Federation and Master Seven, one -
of Lao's leading football clubs. These partnerships are crucial in ensuring the tournament's success and §
reaching a wider range of young athletes. ;?_
The 2023 RHB Junior Football Cup proved to be another testament to RHB Bank's unwavering dedica- %
tion to the youth of Laos. As we look forward to future tournaments, we remain committed to providing g

platforms for children to grow, learn, and build a brighter future through sports.
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RHB Family Day

This is also a platform for us to express our thanks to our employees and applaud the astounding support
they receive from their families in carrying out their work commitments. Such an event has an enduring
impression as it boosts the morale of our employees and contributes to a happier workplace and an
inclusive company culture.

With the various engagement activities aimed at all age groups, it surely made the environment very
much lively. From kayaking at the Nam Song River with the breathtaking scenic views to completing a
challenging scavenger hunt which was a captivating way to explore the streets of Vang Vieng along with
socializing during dinner whilst savoring local Lao food and ending the fun filled weekend with a joyful
bus ride home to Vientiane Capital, it was indeed an experience that kept all of us enthralled.
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RHB Bank Lao Annual Dinner 2023: Celebrating Dreams, Synergy, and Success

The RHB Bank Lao Annual Dinner 2023 wasn't just a delectable feast—it was a vibrant celebration
of dreams, teamwork, and shared success, all set against the captivating theme of "Dream Job." The
night pulsed with infectious energy as colleagues bonded over exciting activities designed to showcase
individuality, camaraderie, and a healthy dose of friendly competition.

Embracing Aspirations: The "Dream Job" theme resonated deeply with RHB employees, reminding us
to chase our ambitions and celebrate each other's achievements. A captivating fashion show unveiled
creative interpretations of our dream jobs, while the best-dressed competition brought playful energy and
a touch of light-hearted rivalry.

Strengthening Bonds, Celebrating Milestones: But the true heartbeat of the evening lay in the strengthening
of bonds between colleagues. Whether catching up during the delicious meal, cheering each other on
during the activities, or simply basking in the shared sense of pride, the RHB team emerged closer and
more invigorated. As we celebrated the year's successes and milestones, the dinner served as a powerful
reminder of what we can achieve together.
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Navigating Challenges and Managing Risks: RHB Bank Lao in a Dynamic Market
Overview:

Laos, a landlocked Southeast Asian nation, experienced a mixed bag of economic outcomes in 2023.
While some sectors saw positive growth, others faced challenges. Here's a brief overview of key markets
and their impacts:

Positive Developments:

Agriculture: Exports of rubber, cassava, and maize surged, boosted by favorable regional demand and
higher prices. This trend is expected to continue due to growing populations and incomes in neighboring
countries.

Hydropower: Exports of electricity to Thailand and Vietnam increased, generating revenue and contributing
to energy security. Further growth is possible with regional infrastructure development.

Tourism: Although still below pre-pandemic levels, the tourism sector showed signs of recovery, particularly
in the latter half of the year. Continued international travel relaxation and targeted promotions could
accelerate this trend.

Challenges and Concerns:

Global Economic Slowdown: The global economic slowdown impacted Laos' trade and
investment, potentially hindering GDP growth.

Inflation: Inflationary pressures impacted household spending and business costs. Effective monetary and
fiscal policies will be crucial in managing inflation. Inadequate infrastructure, particularly in transportation
and logistics, remains a constraint to economic development. Continued investment in this area is needed.

Foreign Direct Investment (FDI): FDI inflows declined in 2023 compared to the previous year. Rejuvenating
investor confidence and offering competitive incentives are key to attracting FDI. The Lao economy grew
at an estimated 4.5% in 2023, slower than initial projections. The positive performance in agriculture and
hydropower cushioned the impact of global headwinds and domestic challenges. While some uncertainties
remain, Laos is taking steps to address infrastructure gaps, attract FDI, and promote export diversification,
which could pave the way for sustainable economic growth in the coming years.
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Board of Directors and Organization Structure

The Bank’s Committees
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Board of Directors
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As of 31 December 2023, the Board of Directors of RHB Bank LLao Sole Co., Ltd (“RHBBLL”) consisted
of five members as follows:
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No. Member Position %{ g
1 Mr. Chin Yoong Kheong Independent, Non-Executive Chainman . :z
2 Mr. Lim Cheng Teck Independent, Non-Executive Deputy Chainman .
3 Ms. Wendy Ting Wei Ling Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director 7 %
4 Mr. Choong Seang Heng Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer e 2
5 Mr. Shawn Conrad Campos Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director § g
The Company Secretary is Mr. Azman Shah Md Yaman ’ é
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Profile of the Board of Directors

CHIN YOONG KHEONG

Independent Non-Executive
Chairman

Malaysian
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Board Of Directors And Organization Structure

Mr. Chin Yoong Kheong ("Mr. Chin") was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Chairman of RHBBLL on
22 July 2019. He is the Chairman of Board Nominating
& Remuneration (Governance) Committee, a member of
Board Audit Committee and Board Risk Committee.

Mr. Chin was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of RHB Investment Bank on 1 August 2016.
Subsequently, on 30 September 2016, he was appointed as
the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director. He also
serves as the Chairman of RHB Investment Bank’s Board
Risk Committee.

Mr. Chin holds a Bachelor of Arts with Honours in
Economics from the University of Leeds and is a Fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. He is also a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Malaysian Institute of
Accountants. Mr. Chin has retired as a partner of KPMG,
one of the leading accounting firms on 31 December 2013,
after having served the firm for more than 34 years in
the United Kingdom, Vietnam and Malaysia. Mr. Chin's
vast experience covers business solutions in areas such
as strategy, human resources, performance improvement
to the public and infrastructure sector, consumer and
industrial markets, and financial services industry. He was
responsible for establishing the KPMG practice in Vietnam
and subsequently headed KPMG's consulting practice for
more than 7 years.

Mr. Chin's other directorships includes RHB Asset
Management Sdn Bhd, RHB Islamic International Asset
Management Berhad, RHB Bank (Cambodia) Plc, RHB
Securities (Cambodia) Plc and Ayer Holdings Berhad, a
company listed on the Kuala Lumpur Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Lim Cheng Teck ("Mr. Lim") was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of RHBBLL on 23
February 2023 and thereafter, he was appointed as Deputy
Chairman of RHBBLL on 11 August 2023. He is the
Chairman of the Board Audit Committee, a member of Board
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Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) and Board Risk
Committee.
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Mr. Lim is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of
RHB Bank Berhad, the Chairman of Board Credit Committee
and a member of Board Risk Committee.
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He holds a Master of Business Administration from Brunel ;
University, United Kingdom and a Bachelor of Arts from the a3

National University of Singapore. g
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LIM CHENG TECK Mr. Lim was the Regional Chief Executive Officer for

ASEAN at Standard Chartered Bank. He first joined Standard
Independent Non-Executive Deputy Chartered Bank in 1988 and has held various roles within
Chairman the bank’s Corporate and Institutional Banking Division

before being appointed as the Chief Operating Officer for
Standard Chartered Bank (China) Ltd in 2005. In 2006, he
was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of Standard
Chartered Bank (Singapore) Ltd. He returned to China in 2009 to take up the role of Chief Executive
Officer and Executive Vice Chairman of Standard Chartered Bank (China) Ltd. He has served on
several Standard Chartered Bank subsidiary boards notably as the Chairman of Standard Chartered
Bank (Mauritius) Ltd, Standard Chartered Bank (Thailand) Ltd, Standard Chartered Bank (Singapore)
Ltd, the Deputy Chairman of Standard Chartered Bank (Malaysia) Ltd and the President Commissioner
of PT Bank Permata, Indonesia. He has also served as a Non-Executive Director of Standard Chartered
Bank (Taiwan) Ltd.

Singapore

uonnadwo)) puy JSHEN

myonng uoneziuedio)
puy S103011(] JO Preog

10O SANNIXH

He has previously served as a Director on the Boards of Clifford Capital Pte Ltd and Singapore
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International Chamber of Commerce, a Governor of Singapore International Foundation and a Council
Member of the Institute of Banking and Finance Singapore and Singapore National Employers
Federation.

Additionally, he was the Chairman of Overseas Financial Service Commission, China Chamber of
Commerce, the Vice Chairman of the Association of Banks Singapore and a Member of the Monetary
Authority of Singapore’s Financial Centre Development Committee. Having served in the banking
arena for over 28 years, Mr. Lim retired from Standard Chartered Bank in April 2016 and continued
as a senior advisor on a non-executive role till April 2017.

Further, he served as Chief Executive Officer of Pontiac Land Group from March 2017 to May 2018
and he completed his 12-year term with the Advisory Board of Sim Kee Boon Institute of Financial

Economics, Singapore Management University in 2021. Currently, he sits on the Boards of Minterest
Holdings Pte Ltd, Bright Vision Community Hospital, Singapore and Sing Health Funds. He is also
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the Chairman of the Board Committee, Sing Health Funds — Sing Health Community Hospitals.
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Ms. Wendy Ting Wei Ling

Non-Independent,
Non-Executive Director

Malaysian
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Board Of Directors And Organization Structure

Ms. Wendy Ting Wei Ling (“Ms. Wendy”) was appointed
as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of RHB Bank
Lao Sole Co., Ltd (“RHBBLL”) on 23 September 2022. She
is also the Chairman of the Board Risk Committee, a Member
of the Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) and
Board Audit Committee..

Ms. Wendy was appointed as Managing Director, Group
International Business & Corporate Banking on 16 May
2022. In addition to her existing role in managing the Group
Corporate Banking portfolio, she will now also oversee and
drive the Group’s international business and operations, which
includes Singapore, Cambodia, Thailand, Laos, and Brunei.

Ms. Wendy has over 19 years of industry experience in
corporate lending, leverage buyouts, syndication as well as
capital market-related activities.

Ms. Wendy presently manages the 3rd largest loan assets
amongst the domestic Banks under the Conventional
portfolio apart from maintaining market share as the 2nd
largest Islamic/Syariah compliant assets. Her responsibilities
also include overseeing and originating corporate lending
activities from the Group’s overseas units within the ASEAN
Region (ex-Japan). Aside from growing assets, she is also
committed to look at building meaningful relationships with
the Corporates (predominantly public listed entities) such that
the relationship is mutually beneficial to both the financial
institution as well as clients.

As part of the Banking Group’s efforts to provide a holistic
banking experience to our valued clients, she brings with
her a profound understanding of corporate cultures as well
as legislations across various sectors/industries as well
as regions to drive cross-border collaborations within the
Group’s network.

Prior to joining RHB, she was the Vice President, Client
Coverage, and thereafter Vice President, Corporate Banking
Division for Maybank Berhad.

Ms. Wendy graduated from the National University of
Malaysia with a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
and a Certified Credit Professional from The Council of
the Institute of Bankers Malaysia. She also graduates from
Executive Development Program, Chicago Booth, Executive
Education.
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Choong Seang Heng

Managing Director / Chief
Executive Officer

Malaysian

Mr. Choong Seang Heng (“Mr Frankie Choong”) was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of RHB Bank Lao
Sole Co., Ltd (“RHBBLL") on 1 November 2020 and as a
Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director on 25 May 2021.

Previously, Mr Frankie Choong was the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of RHBBLL with effect from 1 February
2020.

He joined RHB Bank Bhd, on 18 August 1989. He has more
than 30 years’ experience in the Banking Industry with
proven track record in Retail & Commercial Banking and
Bank Sales & Services. As the Chief Executive Officer, Mr
Frankie Choong is responsible for the overall growth and
profitability of RHBBLL.

Mr Frankie Choong holds a Master in Business and
Administration from University Utara Malaysia, Bachelor
of Art in Psychology and Communication from University
Kebangsaan Malaysia and a Certified Financial Planner of
Financial Planning Association of Malaysia.
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RHB &

Shawn Conrad Campos

Non-Independent Non-Executive
Director

Malaysian

114
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Mr. Shawn Conrad Campos ("Mr. Shawn") was appointed
was appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
of RHBBLL on 11 August 2023.

Mr. Shawn is the Group Chief Credit Officer of RHB Bank
Berhad since March 2019. Prior to that, he was the Deputy
Group Chief Credit Officer for 5 years. He is responsible
for a team of 94 staff which manages a loan portfolio of
approximately RM100.0 billion. The primary responsibility of
the team is to strengthen loan asset quality via the independent
evaluation and approval of Group-wide Corporate, Investment
Banking and SME loan applications for Conventional
and Islamic financing for both domestic and international
operations.

Mr. Shawn served the Credit Compliance Department for 5
years with the last post of Acting Head, Credit Compliance
Department. His job scope includes but not limited to, the
compliance reviews, overseas compliance, and regulatory
compliance. He then was promoted as Vice President
and appointed as the Head of Compliance Competencies
Knowledge Engineering Department.

Prior to joining RHB, he was the Head, Supervision of Market
Institutions of Securities Commission Malaysia responsible
for Financial Analysis & Risk Management as well as Policy
Formulation. He also served KPMG Peat Marwick for 8 years
as Assistant Manager with experience in statutory audits,
business advisory work, due diligence reviews, investigative
audits, and operational reviews, among others.

He is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the
Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Key Responsibilities

The Board is in charged with leading and governing the Company in an effective, efficient and responsible
manner. The Directors, collectively and individually, are aware of their responsibilities to shareholders/
stakeholders and the manner in which the affairs of the Company are managed. They discharge their roles
and duties with integrity, honesty and professionalism within the ambit of the law to serve the interest of
the Company’s shareholders and stakeholders, and ensure the Company adheres to the highest standards
of corporate governance.

The Board assumes an active role and takes full responsibility for key strategy setting, business plans,
financial objectives and major capital and operating budgets. While the Board scrutinizes the frameworks
and policies proposed by the Management, the Board also monitors the Management’s performance in
implementing the adopted strategies as well as provides direction and advice to ensure the achievement
of the objectives.

Rights and Duties of the Board of Directors
Without limiting the generality thereof, the Board of Directors has the following rights and duties:

1. To elaborate on and implement resolutions of the Shareholders’ meeting;

2. To determine the strategy, policy, administrative management, risk management, audit and other
policies related to the Bank’s business operations;

3. Toapprove the Rules and Operations manuals recommended by the Board of Directors” Committees;
4. To be responsible for commercial bank activities in accordance with relevant law and regulations;

5. To receive the information promptly and properly on the credit, important risk, loan and asset
classification, loan provision and asset depreciation and risks arose by asset which may causes
damage to a commercial bank from time to time;

6. To explain, answer [question related], and provide detailed information on the operations at the
Shareholders’ meeting;

7. Torecommend the division of profits into funds and the allocation of dividends at the Shareholders’
meeting for consideration;

8. To propose business plans at the Shareholders’ meeting for consideration and approval;
9. To appoint the Board of Directors’ committee;
10. To appoint or remove the Managing Director/ Chief Executive Officer;

11. To approve the appointment of Deputy Managing Director(s)/ Deputy Chief Executive Officer(s),
based on the recommendation of the Managing Director/ Chief Executive Officer;

12. To report on the operations of the Bank at the Shareholders’ meeting;

13. To exercise such other rights and perform such other duties as provided in the charter of the Bank.
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Meetings & Minutes

e The Board shall meet at least once in every three (3) months, or more as and when/ required.

e Subject to relevant laws and guidelines, the quorum of the meetings shall not be less than
half of the total number of the Directors.

e The Board may convene meetings at any place in Lao or any other country.

e The Board is also allowed to approve resolutions by way of circulation.

Board Audit Committee

As of 31 December 2023, the Board Audit Committee consisted of three members as follows:

No.

1
2
3

Member Position
Mr. Lim Cheng Teck Chairman
Mr. Chin Yoong Kheong Committee
Ms. Wendy Ting Wei Ling Committee

The Company Secretary is Mr. Azman Shah Md Yaman

Key Responsibilities

1.

The Board Audit Committee (“‘the Committee’) is directly accountable to the Board and the Board
will continue to be accountable for all matters relating to RHBBLL. Whilst the Committee reports
to the Board, all minutes are to be tabled to RHB Bank Berhad’s Board Audit Committee as part of
the Group oversight requirements. Audit reports will also be given as and when required by RHB
Bank Berhad’s Board Audit Committee.

To ensure that the Internal Audit Department is distinct and has the appropriate status within
the overall organizational structure for the internal auditors to effectively accomplish their audit
objectives.

To review the effectiveness of internal controls and risk management processes including the scope
of the internal audit program and the appropriateness of the risk assessment methodology employed
to determine the frequency and scope of audits.

To ensure that the reporting relationship of the internal audit staff do not impede the exercise of
independent judgement by the internal auditors. In particular, the reports of internal auditors should
be subject to the clearance of the Managing Director/ Chief Executive Officer or any Executive
Directors.

To ensure that all findings and recommendations are resolved effectively and in a timely manner.

To make appropriate public disclosure of the terms of reference and the activities of the Committee
in the entity’s financial statements, if required.

To review quarterly results and year-end financial statements and to recommend the same to the
Board for approval whilst ensuring that it is prepared in a timely and accurate manner complying
with all applicable accounting and regulatory requirements and are promptly published.
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10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
19.

20.

21.
22.

23.

24.

RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

Board Of Directors And Organization Structure R"B ‘

To regularly review the adequacy of provisions made and to recommend the same to the Boards
for approval.

To review any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise, including
any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of the Management integrity.

To review with the external and internal auditors whether the employees of RHBBLL have given
them appropriate assistance in discharging their duties.

To review the adequacy of the scope, functions and resources of the Internal Audit function and
that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work.

To review and approve the Internal Audit plan, audit charter and the budget for the audit plan.

To ensure that Internal Audit staff receives necessary training to perform audit work. There shall
be a program of continuing education and training to enable the internal auditors to keep abreast
of business trends and latest developments at both the institution and industry levels, as well as to
enhance technical skills required to effectively support the audit function.

To appraise the performance of the Head of Internal Audit and to review the appraisals of senior
staff members of the Internal Audit function.

To approve any appointment or termination of the Head of Internal Audit or senior staff members
of the Internal Audit function and to review any resignations of Internal Audit staff members and
provide resigning staff members an opportunity to submit reasons for resigning, where necessary.

To review with the external auditors, the nature and scope of their audit plan, their evaluation of
the system of internal controls and their management letter and discuss any matter that the external
auditors may wish to raise in the absence of management, where necessary.

To recommend to the Board on the appointment and the annual re-appointment of the external
auditors and assessing their audit fees, after taking into consideration the independence and
objectivity of the external auditors and the cost effectiveness of their audit.

To discuss and review with the external auditors any proposal from them to resign as auditors.

To investigate reasons for any request made by the Management to dismiss the external auditors,
or any resignation by the external auditors. The results of the investigation shall be disclosed to the
Board together with the recommendations on proposed actions to be taken.

To review non-audit services rendered by the external auditors together with the related fees and
thereafter approving or recommending the same to the Board for approval (whichever relevant), in
accordance with the Group Policy on Non-Audit Fees payable to the external auditors.

To review the co-ordination of audit activities between external and internal auditors.

To review inspection and examination reports issued by any regulatory authority and to ensure
prompt and appropriate actions are taken in respect of any findings.

To review the minutes of meetings of management audit committees or other relevant committee
(if any) within RHBBLL to the extent permitted by the relevant regulatory authorities and be
satisfied that all matters arising therefrom are being appropriately addressed by these management
audit committees.

To perform any other functions as authorized by the Boards.
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Rights and Duties of Board Audit Committee

The Board Audit Committee shall at the minimum have the following rights and duties:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

To establish and amend policies regarding financial report and internal controls system inspection,
accounting, information system including an internal audit of commercial bank in order to present
to the Board of Directors for approval;

To give guidance on establishment and amendment of manuals and present to the Board of Directors
for approval and to monitor, inspect and report to the board of director about the implementation
of the manuals;

To inspect the operations activities of a commercial bank including execution of business plan,
resolutions of Board of Directors’ meeting in accordance with the manual and internal rules and law;

To determine qualification requirement of internal auditors;

To approve the engagement or termination of an external audit firm and determine the scope of the
audit as agreed by the Board of Directors;

To monitor and assess the quality of service of the external audit company, independence in relation
to all relationships between the independent external auditor and the Bank;

To request for the annual audited financial report and quarterly financial report, internal audit
report and external audit report with relevant management and the independent external auditor for
checking and discuss on the matters;

To provide advice for audit related matters

To monitor and inspect the administrators’ efforts to correct deficiencies described in an audit
examination;

To discuss with legal consultants, accounting consultants and other advisors as agreed by the board
of director;

To deliver opinions on the issues raised by the Board of Directors and administrators
To summarize and evaluate its annual performance;
To report its performance to the Board of Directors from time to time;

Perform rights and other related duties determined in law and regulations.
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Meetings & Minutes
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e The Committee shall preferably meet at least once every two months or whenever deemed
necessary at the discretion of the Chairman;
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e The quorum of the meetings shall be at least two (2) members or 500 % of the total members,
whichever is higher;
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e The Committee may convene meetings at any place in Lao or any other country;
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e The Committee is also allowed to approve resolutions by way of circulation;

e Resolutions, proposals and matters tabled for approvals at any meeting of the Committee
shall be decided by majority of the members present; and

e The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary of the Committee and shall be responsible for:
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e Drawing up the agenda with the concurrence of the Chairman

e Writing and safe-keeping the minutes of meeting and submission to Board.

Board Risk Committee
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As of 31 December 2023, the Board Risk Committee consisted of three members as follows:

No. Member Position

1 Ms. Wendy Ting Wei Ling Chairman

2 Mr. Chin Yoong Kheong Committee

3 Mr. Lim Cheng Teck Committee

The Company Secretary is Mr. Azman Shah Md Yaman
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1. To provide risk oversight and guidance to RHBBLL’s business operations through the support of

an effective internal risk management framework and sound risk strategies. ? T(g:
2. To review and recommend, risk management policies and procedures, controls and systems of ;5 E
RHBBLL in line with the approved risk management philosophy and strategy of RHBBLL and 2 -
U a
RHB Group. g3
s 5
3. Toensure that RHBBLL s business and operations are in line with RHBBLL’s and the overall RHB 5 =
Group’s risk strategy and profile =z
4. To deliberate and assess the nature and materiality of the risk exposures and its impact on RHBBLL’s )
capital and business. 3
5. Recommending new/ existing products with material variations in product features to the Board E

for approval.
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Risk Organization

1.

To oversee the overall management of risks covering market risk management, asset and liability
management, credit risk management, operational risk management and compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations

To establish clear and independent reporting lines and responsibilities for the overall business
activities and risk management and control functions.

To cultivate a proactive risk management and compliance culture within RHBBLL, so that risk
management processes are applied in the day-to-day business and activities.

To supervise the independent review of the RHBBLL’s risk management infrastructure, capabilities,
environment and processes where necessary.

Rights and Duties of Board Risk Committee

To avoid or reduce risks that may occur to the Bank, the Board Risk Committee shall, at the minimum,
have the following rights and duties:

1.

6.
7.

To establish and amend policies regarding the risk management of commercial bank and recommend
to the Board of Directors for approval;

To give guidance on establishment and amendment of manuals and present to the Board of Directors
for approval and to monitor, inspect and report to the Board of Director about the implementation
of the manuals;

To determine the eligible requirement of the risk management officer;

To deliver opinions on any matters submitted to it by the Board of Directors or that it wishes to
address;

To summarizes and evaluate its annual performance;
To report its performance to the Board of Director from time to time; and

To perform rights and other related duties determined in law and regulations.

Meetings & Minutes

1.

The Committee shall preferably meet at least once every two months or whenever deemed necessary
at the discretion of the Chairman;

The quorum of the meetings shall be at least two (2) members or 500 % of the total members,
whichever is higher;

The Committee may convene meetings at any place in Lao or any other country;
The Committee is also allowed to approve resolutions by way of circulation;

Resolutions, proposals and matters tabled for approvals at any meeting of the Committee shall be
decided by majority of the members present; and

The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary of the Committee and shall be responsible for:

e Drawing up the agenda with the concurrence of the Chairman

e Writing and safe-keeping the minutes of meeting and submission to Board.
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Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee

As of 31 December 2023, the Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee (“BNR(G)
C”) consisted of three members as follows:

No.
1
2
3

Member Position
Mr. Chin Yoong Kheong Chairman
Mr. Lim Cheng Teck Committee
Mr. Wendy Ting Wei Ling ~ Committee

The Company Secretary is Mr. Azman Shah Md Yaman

Key Responsibilities

The terms of reference of the RHBBLL’s BNR(G)C with regard to its nomination roles are as follows: -

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

To establish a documented procedure for the appointment of Directors, Board Committee members
and key Senior Management officers.

To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, minimum requirements for Directors and key
Senior Management officers.

To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, the optimal size and mix of skills to ensure
efficient operation of the Committee.

To assess and recommend for Board’s approval, new and re-appointed nominees for directorship,
Board Committee members and key Senior Management officers.

To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, the expectations on time commitment for the
Board members and protocols for accepting new directorships.

To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, a mechanism for the formal assessment of the
Board’s performance as a whole, each Director and key Senior Management officers.

To review performance assessment results and recommend to the Board, the removal of any Director
or key Senior Management officer found to be ineffective, errant and negligent in the discharge or
responsibilities.

To ensure Directors and Board Committee members receive appropriate induction and continuous
training programs for closure of skills gaps and keeping abreast with latest developments.

To establish and recommend for Board’s approval, the criteria assess independence of independent
directors.

To assess annually the independence of Independent Directors and that the Directors and officers
of RHBBLL meet the identified independence criteria and are not disqualified under relevant
regulations.

To review and recommend for Board’s approval, any significant change in the organization structure
of the RHBBLL.

Whenever key expatriates are employed, to ensure there is in place a process for the transfer of
expertise and skills from the expatriates to the staff of RHBBLL.

To recommend to the Board, a policy regarding the period of service for the Executive and Non-
Executive Directors.

To perform any other functions as defined by the Board.
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Reporting Structure

The Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee (‘the Committee™) is directly
accountable to Board and the Board will continue to be accountable for all matters relating to RHBBLL.
Whilst the Committee reports to the Board, all minutes of meeting are to be tabled to RHB Bank Berhad’s
Board Nominating & Remuneration Committee as part of the Group oversight requirements.

The terms of reference of the BNR(G)C with regard to its remuneration roles are as follows: -

1. To ensure the establishment of formal and transparent procedures for developing Remuneration
and HR policies, strategies and frameworks for Directors, key Senior Management officers (which
entails MD/ Chief Executive Officer and persons as may be determined by the Committee) and staff.

2. Torecommend remuneration strategies, policies & framework and specific remuneration packages
for directors, board committee members and key senior management officers, which would be
(where relevant):

e Market competitive and in support of the Group’s culture, vision, objectives and strategy;

e Reflective of the responsibilities and commitment required;

o Sufficient to attract and retain quality people but yet not excessive;

e Performance driven with sufficient emphasis on long term development of RHBBLL to

avoid excessive short-term risk taking

The framework should cover all aspects of remuneration including directors’ fees, salaries, allowances,
bonuses, option and benefit-in-kind.

3. Toensure HR strategies, policies and frameworks are in place for all the building blocks of a quality
HR management system (e.g., succession planning, talent and leadership development training,
etc.) to support the RHBBLL in achieving its objectives.

4. Toreview and assess the effectiveness of the GHR and/or HR Division in supporting the RHBBLL.

5. Toreview and recommend for Board approval, any significant change in the organization structure
of RHBBLL.

6. To perform any other functions as defined by the Board.
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Rights and Duties of Board Nominating & Remuneration (Governance) Committee

The Committee shall, at the minimum have the following rights and duties:

1.

0.

To study the establishment and amendment of the policy related the human resource management,
determine the ethical rules, principles and management election process, remuneration of
management team in order to present to the Board of Directors for approval;

To give guidance on establishment and amendment of the manuals to present to the Board
of Directors for approval and also to monitor, inspect and report to the Board of Directors the
implementation of such manuals;

To determine the eligible requirements of the governance managers;

To select, recommend for the appointment or removal of Managing Director/ CEO and Internal Audit
and recommend (them) to the Board of Directors for appointment in accordance with established
criteria;

To consider appointment of Deputy MD/ DCEO, Head of Departments, branch managers as

recommended by the Managing Director in order to present to the Board of Directors for approval;

To determine requirements and working plan for performance assessment of Board of Director
and administrators;

To propose to the board of director regarding determination of penalty to administrators who breach
the company’s rules;

To propose to the board of director regarding removal of an administrator who is not qualified or
not suitable to continue to hold the position;

To summarize and evaluate its annual performance;

10. To report its performance to the board of director from time to time;

11. To perform rights and other related duties determined in relevant law and regulations.

Meetings & Minutes

e The Committee shall preferably meet at least once every two months or whenever deemed

necessary at the discretion of the Chairman

e The quorum of the meetings shall be at least two (2) members or 500 % of the total members,

whichever is higher;

e The Committee may convene meetings at any place in Lao or other country
e The Committee is also allowed to carry out resolution by way of circulation.

e Resolutions, proposals and matters tabled for approvals at any meeting of the Committee shall

be decided by majority of the members present; and the secretary shall be the Group Company
Secretary or an official from Group Secretariat Division.

e The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary of the Committee and shall be responsible for:

— Drawing up the agenda with the concurrence of the Chairman

— Writing and safe-keeping the minutes of meeting and submission to Board.
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RHB®

Management Team

As of 31 December 2023, the Management team of RHB Bank Limited consisted of the following:
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Name

Choong Seang Heng
Ong Chong Seng

Chiam Tau Yu
Somphavanh Bounyasith
Phannavy Anoulack
Bounyared Luangraj
Vilaphonh Manivanh
Vinattha Phasathane
Arichana Ravindra Kumar
Chanthasone Vangvichith
Horace Arpu Thaselan
Lithidet Sanavongxay
Thavone Sonenasid
Oulayvanh Siphandone
Kaysone Malaythong
Tanvinay Nguansavanh

Keobounthan Xongchaikhua

Thonglay Phonvilaisouk
Mayulin Sithongkham
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Position

Chief Executive Officer

Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Head, Loan Recovery

Head, Operations and Support

Head, Credit Evaluation

Head, Risk Management

Head, Information Technology

Head, Compliance

Head, Human Resource & Training
Head, Credit Operation

Senior Manager, Business Development & Marketing
Manager, Finance and Administration
Manager, Internal Audit

Manager, Frontline Operations
Deputy Manager, Frontline Operations
Manager, Sithan Neua Branch

Deputy Manager, Sithan Neua Branch
Manager, Dongdok Branch

Deputy Manager, Dongdok Branch
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RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

R”B ‘ Board Of Directors And Organization Structure

Rights and Duties of Chief Executive Officer / Deputy Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for day-to-day operations of the Bank in accordance with the
rights and duties defined in the internal regulations of the Bank.

The Chief Executive Officer is appointed and may be removed by the Board of Directors, has a term of

office of three years, and may be re-appointed consecutively not more than 3 times.

The Chief Executive Officer can be a member of the Board of Directors, but shall not be the Chairperson
or a Deputy Chairperson of the Board of Directors or a chairman of any board committee.

The Chief Executive Officer shall have the following rights and duties:

1.

10.
11.

12.

13.

14.
15.
16.

To act as the representative of, and to sign contracts and other official documents on behalf of the
Bank

To manage day-to-day operations of the Bank

To develop and propose, or to propose adjustment to, the annual business plan to the Board of
Directors for consideration and approval, and then to implement such plan;

To appoint or remove the Deputy General Managing Director (DMD/DCEOQO) and then to propose
to the Board of Directors for approval;

To appoint or remove the Head of Department or Branch Managers

To allocate employees of the bank according to his/her authority or according to proposal of the
board of director Committee;

To appoint, remove, recruit and deploy the employees of the Bank;

To provide data and information and to give explanation on particular issues of interests to the
Board of Directors;

To develop and improve governance regulations and to propose [them] to the Board of Directors
for consideration and approval;

To be responsible to the Board of Directors for all operations of the Bank;

To recommend to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval, the establishment of
branches and affiliates or investments in other businesses;

To determine the salary structure for, and to implement reward policies and sanctions towards the
employees of the Bank, in accordance with regulations of the Bank;

To cooperate with, and to provide data, information and explanations, to the internal audit committee
and external auditors;

To provide explanations and necessary documents as required by the Board of Directors;
To report on the operations of the Bank to the Board of Directors and its committees;

To exercise other rights, and perform other duties as provided under the regulations.
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RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

Board Of Directors And Organization Structure R"B ‘

Company Secretary

The Board acknowledges and is satisfied with the performance and support rendered by the Company
Secretary. In addition to acting as the custodian of the Company’s statutory records, the Company
Secretary serves and advises the Board on matters relating to the affairs of the Board and good corporate
governance practices, ensure that Board meetings are appropriately convened and maintains an accurate
and proper record of the proceedings and minutes of the meetings.

In promoting good corporate governance practices, the Company Secretary assists the Board and Senior
Management in meeting regulatory requirements and best practices specifically pertaining to Board
governance. This includes making proposals on transparency and mandatory/voluntary disclosure on
governance issues which are relevant and materially important to the stakeholders.

The role of the Company Secretary also includes assisting the Chairman and Directors in conducting
meetings and discharging their governance obligations and responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

Additionally, the Company Secretary facilitates the communication of key decisions and policies between
the Board, Board Committees and the Senior Management, updating the Board on the follow-up or
implementation of decisions/recommendations.

In order to play an effective advisory role to the Board, the Company Secretary is kept abreast with the
latest, industry developments and best practices in corporate governance.
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RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

R”B ‘ Message From The Chief Executive Officer

Message from the Chief Executive Officer

Dear stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors and the entire team at RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd., I am pleased
to present our 2023 annual report.

Looking back on 2023, we faced a complex and evolving economic landscape. Despite these challenges,

we have remained focused on fulfilling our commitment to providing comprehensive banking and financial
services to our customers in Lao PDR. We are proud to report the following achievements in 2023:

Solid financial performance: We achieved consistent growth across key financial metrics,
including increased profitability and a strengthened loan base.

Expanded customer base: We welcomed a significant number of new customers while deepening
relationships with existing ones.

Strengthened corporate social responsibility: “Touching hearts, enriching lives: RHB’s initiative
for a brighter tomorrow”. RHB Touch Hearts is a group-wide corporate social responsibility
programme with a theme of enriching the community. This year we at RHB Laos embarked on an
initiative to create awareness and educate children on financial literacy. It was followed by tree
planting in the spirit of promoting sustainability. It was a fulfilling experience giving back to the
community and an effective platform to boost morale and strengthening employee engagement.
We hope our initiative will have a positive impact to the community. We remained committed
to giving back to the communities we serve through various initiatives and partnerships.

Staff engagement: As organizations find new ways to keep their employees engaged, we at
RHB Laos hosted Family Day for our employees. This event blends in fun, family, and work
as everyone was rejoicing with their families and colleagues. It was a perfect opportunity for
us to build our relationships between our employees and their families. This is also a platform
for us to express our thanks to our employees and applaud the astounding support they receive
from their families in carrying out their work commitments.

Adhere to regulatory requirements: In a proactive move to align with regulatory guidelines set
forth by the Bank of Laos (BOL), we have successfully transitioned all staff member salaries
from USD to LAK. This decision demonstrates our unwavering commitment to regulatory
compliance and underscores our dedication to operating within the Laotian financial landscape.

We are confident that with our dedicated team, strong financial position, and unwavering commitment to
excellence, RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd. is well-positioned for continued success in the years to come.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our customers, shareholders, employees, and business
partners for their continued support and trust. Finally, I want to acknowledge and thank our dedicated

team whose hard work and dedication make our achievements possible.
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RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

Message From The Chief Executive Officer 2023 < >

Sincerely,

We confirm that the Bank has complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

R”B ‘ Independent Auditor’s Report To The Share Holders
And Board Of Directors Of RHB Bank

Independent Auditor’s Report To The Shareholder Of Rhb Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of RHB Bank Lao Sole Co., Ltd (the Bank) for the year ended
31 December 2023 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant accounting
regulations and notifications of Bank of the Lao People’s Democratic Republic and accounting policies
as described in Note 2 to the financial statements.

What we have audited
The Bank’s financial statements comprise:

o the statement of financial position as at ) December Y+ YY;
e the statement of income for the year then ended;

e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of accounting and restriction on distribution and use

We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The
financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting policies described in Note 2 to the
financial statements. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for another purpose.

Our report is intended solely for the Bank and should not be distributed to or used by parties other
than the Bank. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD

Independent Auditor’s Report To The Share Holders R"B ‘
And Board Of Directors Of RHB Bank

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
relevant accounting regulations and notifications of Bank of Lao People’s Democratic Republic and
accounting policies described in Note 2 to the financial statements, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.
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RHB BANK LAO SOLE CO., LTD
< > 2023 Independent Auditor’s Report To The Share Holders
And Board Of Directors Of RHB Bank
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

For PricewaterhouseCoopers (Lao) Sole Company Limited

y/ dfiogajo
) Pricewatemouse Coopers (Lao

Sole Company 4
Limite s§'\°>

By Sinsiri Thangsombat
Partner

Vientiane Capital, Lao P.D.R.
Date: 29 March 2024
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